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Please consider reviewing a novel that I have completed that is titled,
'Easily'. Easily is a sixteen chapter ethnic/police procedural novel with

a tinge of the supernatural and an estimated word count of 98,000 words,
and I hope that you will consider reviewing it. Easily is the name that a
homicidal demon has given himself, and has demanded that everyone who comes
into contact with him calls him, while he has taken up residence in the home
of an African American couple who lives in Mount Airy, a middle class
section of Philadelphia, where he is implementing his plan to overthrow
Satan and take over hell, as he attempts to take over the world in the
process. While everything starts to appear as if it's going to have a bleak
outcome, and the number of the people who the demon has killed is starting
to pile up, there is one African American, Philadelphia police homicide
detective, detective sergeant Roosevelt M. Quinn who is determined to stop
this demon from it's killing and taking over the world at any cost.

During Quinn's investigation into this demon, priest's who are led by the
world renowned Cardinal Germani, a devout God fearing catholic priest, who
is loved by millions of people all around the world, and who everyone
believes will become the next Pope approach Quinn on behalf of the Vatican
to offer him their assistance. But after they get involved, Quinn starts to
believe that he cannot trust them, behind the fact that he is constantly
catching them, as they are trying to conceal information from him that he
feels is not only necessary, but vital to his investigation on stopping
this demon from it's killing of innocent people.

I think that my novel 'Easily' will appeal to fans of Stephen King and
Dean Koontz, who have had a strong influence on my work.

There is a S.A.S.E. enclosed for your convenience, and I hope to be hearing
from you in the near future.

Thank you for your time,
and have a pleasant day.
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Chapter 1.

Philadelphia police detective sergeant Roosevelt M. Quinn is leaning
up against the passenger side, rear door of his undercover squad car, a 2003
midnight blue Chevy Celebrity, while having a cup of coffee in the parking
lot of an AM-PM convenient store in the heat of this mid-summer morning.
It's July the seventeenth, and the heatwave in Philly is now going into it's
third week. It's only 11:27 A.M., and the temperture is already a smeltering
102 degrees. With today's high being estimated at a staggering 122 degrees
for the entire Delaware Valley, not to many people are looking forward to
the slow approach 6f the afternoon's high temperatures. Facing towards Ogontz
Ave.,, Quinn notices that Philly's West Qak Lane section is slowly
deteriorating and has been, for quite some time. Between all of the abandoned
buildings that have been poping up, and the homeless people who have been
materializing everywhere, aloﬁg with the prostitutes who are out and walking
up and down the street, who are willing to do anything for as little as ten
dollars, Quinn see's that this section of the city is slowly becoming a
cesspool. As Quinn watches the hookers who are trying to steop traffic, he
-also notices drug dealers who are posted to sell crack to anyone who wants
it. And Quinn thought to himself, that when that crack shit came out, that

--it ruined a lot of lives. There are children who go to bed hungry and are
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neglected because their parents care more about getting high, than looking
after their own kids well being. Well, Quinn doesn't like it, but what is he
suppose to do about it? If he arrested one drug dealer, there are four more
waiting in line to take his place., But that same drug dealer would be cut of
jail in a few hours, standing on the same corner, selling the same crap.
Quinn was really just letting his mind wander, he was contemplating on what
had happened just a few hours ago, when he was at the Criminal Justice
Center, where criminals go for their court hearings for the crimes that they
have committed. Quinn has been down at C.J.C. for hearings, trials, and
sentencing hearings well over a thousand times, since it has opened in

1995, Up until a few years ago, Quinn has been regarded as one of the best
deteétives in the police departments homicide division. But when his wife
Crystal had left him, because he was concentrating or his job and neglecting
her, her new friend Leon was there to keep her company on those long and
lonesome nights.:ﬁhen Quinn and a few of his fellow homicide detectives were
assisting the F.B.I. investigate a new hit squad that had arrived in Philly
from Miami. The feds had suspected that they were in fact the back-up and
that they were enforcing a hostile take over of a new arms dealer in

Philly. As if it wasn't bad enough to have the streets flooded with heroin,
marijuana and every other illegal substance under the sun, but now to have
drug dealers walk around with Uzi's and Mac-10's that they only had to pay
three hundred dollars for, it was a drug turf war waiting to happen.

Quinn's ex-wife just couldn't understand how important his job really

was. These new arms dealers were suspected of killing thirteen people in a
time frame of only two weeks. Quinn had to work to protect the city of
Phiiadelphia, just as he had swore to do. But Crystal had used his overtime

and less time with her as an excuse. The two of them had been together since
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highschool, and she was just ready to move on. Quinn wasn't mad or hurt when
she left him a year after he had found out about her infidelity, because he
was thinking about leaving her too but she had just‘beat him to it, and left
first. Eventhough Quinn had to admit that he still loved Crystal, he also had
to admit that he Qasn't still 'in love' with her. Before their divorce was
finalized about a year ago, they've been together for sixteen years and
married for eleven. The two of them.had started to go together when they were
seventeen years old. And when they were married on the first Sunday of the
month of June twelve years ago, they both were twenty two years old. And now
their both thirty four and divorced. When Crystal left Quinn, his work

had suffered. He was showing up for work late on the days that he had bothered

to show up at all. And that was on the days that he had to force himself up out

“of bed” with a massive hangover: Quinn had-let two murder suspect's get off scot

free because he had violéted their rights and didh't read them their miranda
warnings before he had guestioned them, He had also broken into a suspect's
home at three in the morning without a warrant. That was the time he had
almost gotten killed by the suspect's brother, when he had heard Quinn coming

into the house through the window at three in the morning, when he had

grabbed his shotgun and held Quinn at gunpoint until the cops had

arrived. And it was then discovered that he was drunk as usual. Quinn had
almost been fired that time, but his superior officer, Captain Edwards knew
that Quinn's wife had just left him so he had told Quinn that he understood,
but he really didmn't. So he had given Quinn a month off. to get himself
together, so he did. But Quinn will never like the sort of ‘thing that
happened this morning at court. A few months ago, a group of five black and

hispanic teenagers had went to a grocery store in North Philly while they
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were armed with handguns to rob the store at gunpoint, so that they could
go buy some weed, some beer and a pack of Newport cigarettes. While the
teenagers were sticking up the store, a twenty year old Dominican woman had
walked into the store carrying a toy pistol in her hand. The teenagers must
have thought that Maria was a cop, because Maria Cruz was then shot twice
and she had died at the scene. What the teenagers didn't know, is that Ms.
Cruz wasn't a cop at all. She was home babysitting her four year old nephew
Pedro, who was begging Maria to buy him a grape soda. So when she had agreed
to take him to the store to buy him a grape soda, she had let him carry his
toy pistol with him. As they were walking to the store, Pedro had kept
pointing his toy gun at people on the street, even after Maria had told him
to stop doing that, but after a few minutes of this, Maria took Pete's gun
away from him and she had held onto it because he wouldn't listen to her.

So when Maria had walked into the store with Pete following closely behind
her, the teenage boys had shot and killed her right in front of her nephew
Pete. Luckily though, the entire incident had taken place right in front

of a video camera, and three eyewitnesses, who all had appeared in court
for the suspect's preliminary hearing. When the assistant district attorney
had showed the video tape from the store to the court, the defense attorneys
who were representing the defendant's from the Hartson, Phelps, Johns and
Diehl law firm in west Philly, said that the use of a video tape against
these defendant's was unconstitutional, and inadmissible because these
defendant's were juveniles. And because all of the defendants were either
fifteen or sixteen at tﬁe time, and not one of them had any type of criminal
| record at the time that they have committed this crime, the court had no
other choice but to pass this case off to juvenile court. So the judge had

done exactly that. The Cruz family was crushed. A lot of them were going
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hysterical and crying vehemently, while a few of them were promising révénge.
How can a young, beautiful woman who had her entire life ahead of her be
brutally killed, and her killer's face nothing more than five or six years
in juvenile hall? Thats all that they were facing. Jail until their
twenty first birthdays, that would be followed by five years probation, if
the assistant D.A. was lucky, and they all recieved the maximum sentence
under the law. Oh well, Quinn didn't like it, but what could he do about
it? The law is the law. Finishing his large cup of coffee, Quinn walked over
to the trash can and threw the empty cup away. Immediately after he had
deposited the cup into the trashcan, Quinn had stopped and locked at his
reflection in the store's front window, and he liked what he saw. Standing
at six feet, three inches tall and having a gblden brown camplexion, his
short wavy hair‘on the top of his is perfect with not a single hair cut of
place. And the fact that he's clean shaven, besides the short, nicely trimmed
mustache, once again Quinn had thought that he looked very nice. All of the
other people cutside the store are all locking at Quimn a little leary, this
big black man, who anyone can tell has a muscular physique, under the gray
dress shirt, tie and slacks that he had wore for court this morning are not
just leary of Quinn for his size, but because of the .357 magnum that is
holstered to the small of his back. Quinn was thinking about going into the
store and getting another cup of coffee, but had changed his mind. Quinn
had told Captain Edwards that he had to go to court today, and that he had
expected to be there all day, so Captain Edwards had excused him from duty
today. But wheh Quinn had called him back, and informed him of the development
of what had happened this morning, captain Edwards had told him to go home,
and rest up for tomorrow, but he would keep him on standby, but that didn't

bother him too much. He sort of expected that. But it was the other thing
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that the captain had said that made Quinn flinch. Go home and res£ uﬁ for
tomorrow, and that could have only meant one thing, paperwork, and plenty
of it. So Quinn had walked back to his car for the drive home so that he
could relax and get ready for tomorrow. When Quinn was walking towards his
car, a young prostitute was headed in his direction. She stood at
approximately five feet, four inches tall and she had the complexion of milk
chocolate. Quinn had guessed that she was between twenty four to twenty six
years old at the most. And Quinn was always a good judge when it came to
peoples ages. When he reached his car, he opened the drivers door to get
in, but something made him stop, and watch the hooker who was now coming
towards him from Ogontz Ave.. While Quinn was keeping an eye on the hooker,
a '6' bus was headed towards the terminal at Broad and Olney. Detective Quinn
grew up in this neighborhood, so he remembers when the '6' was trolleys and
not busses. Quinn didn't know what had just made him think of that, he just
did. wWhen the hocker had reached his car, she had stopped and looked at Quinn
before she had smiled at him before she had said, "Hiya handsome, is it hot
enough for you?" "Yes it is. But the heat is good for you, it keeps the blood
flowing." Quinn had then noticed that his estimate of the girl's age was
correct. Dressed in a lavender colored sweatsuit that is slightly dirty,
and a white pair of scuffed up Nike sneakers, Quinn knew that he was also
right when he had thought that the young woman was homeless. But she was
probably living at one of the homeless shelters in the area. "So what are
you doing handsome?, are you waiting for someone?" "No I'm just thinking
out my next move, thats all. How about you?, what are you doing?" "Suffering
from this heat. I'm going into the store to buy the coldest soda that I can
find. Unless you'd like a date, then you could buy me a beer instead." "No
thanks. I think I'1l pass. But thanks for the offer." "Ch c'mon handsome,

one date. I tell you what, you could even take me to your house, strait to
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the bedroom if you'd like. And for just twenty dollars, I'll even get naked for
you, and I won't resist at all. You could have your way with me. So how does
that sound handsome? Do you like that idea or what?" Before Quinn had the
opportunity to respond to the hooker's proposition, the hooker had said, "You
know what?, I'm a‘good judge of character, and you look like a man who likes

to get blowjobs!" Then she smiled at him, and said, "I'm right aren't I? You
like to get orally freaky don't you?" Once again when Quinn was about to speak
he was cut off, but not by the hooker this time, this time it was by the police
scanner in his undercover police car. "This is center control for U.C. unit 1703.
Repeat, this is center control for U.C. unit 1703 over." Quinn then said to the
hooker, "Excuse me for a moment." Quinn then turned around and bent over through
the open window of his police car. Thats when the prostitute seen his enormous
gun. Quinn then grabbed the two way radio's mouth piece, then stood strait up
and faced the hooker once again. He then said into the mouthpiece, "This is U.C.
unti 1703 to center control, repeat. This is U.C. unit 1703 to center control
over." The female voice then said, "Stand by unit 1703 for transmission from
center control. Repeat, stand by U.C. urit 1703 for transmission from center
control-over.,” Quinn then said, "Unit 1703 standing by, over and out." The hooker
was standing in front of Quinn with her eyés almost twice their normal size.

She couldn't believe that she had just propositioned a cop. Quinn then asked
her, "What is your name young lady?" Quinn knew that the hooker would be lying
when she had taken too long to say her own name. But she had finally said, "Ahh,
ahh, Shaquanda. Yeah thats right, my name is Shaquanda. And what is your name
officer? Oh, I'm going to need your badge number too. By the way officer, what
does U.C. stand for?" Quinn then said, "It stands for 'underéover'. By the way
Shaquanda, it isn't officer. It's detective sergeant Quinn, of the Philadelphia

police department's, homicide division." "Homicide division?! Well detective
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sergeant Quinn you can't arrest me!, I've never killed nobody in my life! And
besides that!, you propositioned me! It'll be my word against your's, because
look around," the hooker was holding her arms out, as she spun around before
she said, "Sergeant Quinn there's people going into and coming out of the store
while other people are pumping gas into their cars. Everybody is busy, and
nobody isn't paying us any attention. So you don't have any witnesses to
testify against me!, so you don't have a case!" Quinn just stood there and

watched as the hooker was pleading her case to him. And going by the fact
that she couldn't stand still for a single second, as she was unnecessarily

fiddling with her earrings, Quinn knew that she was extremely nervous, which
made him think that it was either one of two things that made her this nervous.
Fither she didn't want to get her background checked, because she might have

a bench warrant, and that would have meant that Quinn would have no other choice
but to take her into his custody for the solicitation of prostitution. And
another arrest for the same thing, would have meant jail time., Or that she

was already on probation for the same thing, and this arrest would have meant
a prison sentence. But what the girl didn't realize, is that Quinn was waiting
for his office to call him back about a homicide, And so because of that,

he wasn't going to take her anywhere. So he then said, "Ms. what did you

say your name was again?" Quinn could see that the hooker had already

forgotten the alias that she had given him, by the way that she was trying

her hardest to stand still, but that wasn't going to happen. The hooker was
nervous, she had something to hide. Her head shot back and she was looking
strait up as if she would be able to remember the fake name that she had

just given Quinn in the blueness_of the summer sky. The hocker then loocked

back at Quinn before she had said, "My name is Laquiesha, detective-sergeant."
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She knew that she messed up no soon that she had said that. Anyone with just half
a brain could tell by the way that her mouth fell open, and the way that her eyes
had gotten bigger for a split second. As she looked at Quinn, she seen by the
expression that was on his face, that he knew that she was lying to him again.
And that made it twice in the past five minutes. The prostitute just knew that
she was on her way to the thirty-fifth police district at Broad & Champlost.

Not for only proposititioning a police detective, but also for giving him a fake
name when he asked. But what she still didn't realize, is that Quinn was waiting
for the location of a possible homicide. Today was her lucky day, but she just
didn't realize it. So Quinn had then said, "Dida't you just tell me that your name
is Shaquanda?, Laquiesha?" "Well, it is! My name is Shaquanda Laquiesha." "Well
Shaquanda Laquiesha, go buy yourself that soda, and have a pleasant day." The
hooker then looked at Quinn like she didn't believe what he had just said to her,
before she had started to back away from him, going in the direction of the
store. She then said, "You have a nice day too detective~sergeant, Quinn."

After she stepped into the store, Quinn then opened the door to his car and sat
in it before turning on the ignition. He was still waiting for his office to call
him back. His office was in the headquarters building of the Philadelphia police
department, that is known tolevery person in Philly as the roundhouse. The
-roundhouse was given that name because eventhough the building is six stories
tall, the entire building is shaped just like a pair of handcuffs. As Quinn was
sitting in his car, he thought that this was taking a long time for his office

to call him back. It's been almost five minutes now, and it never takes his
office over two minutes to call him back. Still sitting here in the parking lot
of the A.M.-P.M,, Quinn glances towards Ogontz Ave., and waits for the call,
Quinn never seen the hooker come out of the store, she must be waiting for him

to leave first, or she had already came out and took off before Quinn had the
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chance to see her again, beéause she didn't want him to change his mind about
arresting her. But Quinn grew up in this neighborhood, he knew that he would be
seeing her again, and he hoped that the next time that he seen her, that she
wouldn't be the corpse that was laying in a body bag, at the scene of a murder,
In the past twelve years, Quinn has seen Philly at itfs best, and it's worst,
It could be very forgiving and extremely wicked. The radio in his car then brought
Quinn out of his thoughts as the dispatcher said, "This is center control for
U.C. unit 1703. Repeat. This is center control for U.C. unit 1703 over." Quinn
then picked up the mouthpiece to the two way radio and said, "This is U.C. unit
1703 for center control, repeat. This is U.C. 1703 for center control over.," "1703,
we need a car to check out what we believe to be a crank cail about a possible
187 in the Mount Airy section of the city. Repeat. We need a car to check out
what we believe to be a crank call about a possible 187 in the Mount Airy section
of the city. For the perpetrator is said to be, an apparition. Repeat, the
perpetrator is said to be an apparition, over." "This is unit 1703, what is the
address? I'll go check it out. Repeat center control, I need the address to
check it out. Center control came back and gave Quinn an address that was on a
side street right off of Stenton Ave.. So Quinn then took his portable light for
the roof of the car from under the seat of the passengers side of the front of
the car, and placed it on the roof Qf his car before turning it on. He then
left the parking lot of the convenient store and headed northbound on Ogontz
Ave.. Quinn knew that he would be at the address in about ten minutes, so he then
picked up his mouthpiece to the radio and said, "Center control, this is unit
1703, how many other units have been dispatched to this location about the
possible 1877, over.” "1703, in response to your inquiry on how many other
units have been dispatched to your location about the possible 187, none. You
are the only one." "Roger that center control, over and out." While Quinn was

headed northbound on Ogontz Ave., he had seen why it took center control
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so long to get back with him about this scene, and why this call wasn't
transferred to his office. Center control didn't want to waste captain Edwards
or lieutenant Gilman's time with a crank call. And he could also see why no
other units were dispatched to the scene, the perpetrator was an apparition?z,
wonderful. Quinn's first day off in nearly a month and he's out here
investigating a possible homicide, where the felon is a ghost? 0.k., if there's
anything that Quinn hates, it's being dispatched to a crank call. And he has
already decided that when he gets to the scene ocut in Mount Airy, that if there
wasn't no dead body, that he would arrest the person or pecople responsible for
making the crank call. Now traveling on Stenton Ave., he finds the street where
the ghost is suppose to be that has committed a homicide. Turning wastbound
again, he finds the address and parked his car directly in front of the residence,
After Quinn grabbed his hand held radio from out of the glove box, he walks
towards the front of the house. When he was halfway up the walkway, he seen
the front door to the house as it flew open, before a white woman with shoulder
length dark hair, who had appeared to be in her early forties, was running
directly towards him, Quinn had guessed that the woman was about five feet four
inches tall, but what he couldn't understand was “nzhy she was holding her arms
- and hands in such a strange position. It appeared to Quinn, that the woman's
arms were up against her sides and bent at her elbows, while her forearms were
pointing upward before her. Her fingers were spread as wide apart as possible,
and she was shaking her hands frantically. As she was shaking her hands, the
woman was screaming at the top of her lungs and as loud as _she possibly could.
With all of that screaming, the woman had caused a few of the neighbors to come
out out of their homes to see what was happening. As the woman was running
towards Quinn, she had fallen to the ground almost right before his feet., She

was dead instantly. Quinn stopped where the woman had fallen to the ground,
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and he had checked her for a pulse, but she didn't have one. Quinn then took
out his hand held radio and had said into it, "This is 1703 to center control,
repeat, this is 1703 to center control over!" "Roger 1703 we read you loud and
clear over." One 187 on Lakeshore Road has been confirmed! Repeat!, ane 187
on Lakeshore Road has been confirmed! Victim is laying on the walkway in
front of the residence, more victims and the perpetrator may be inside. I'm
going in! Send back-up A.S.A.P.!, Over!" "Roger that 1703!, backup is on

the way over énd out!" While he had shoved his portable radio into his front
pocket with his left hand, Quinn was also grabbing his .357 with his right
hand and had proceeded the rest of the way to the front door of the house.

As Quinn was about to enter the hame, one of the neighbors had said to him,
'"What do you think your going to do?! You can't do nothing, it's 'Easily'!"

. "Ms. Keep everybody away from the body, help is on the way!" The woman then
looked at the dead woman who was laying on the walkway before she turned

to face Quinn again before she had said, "Officer, if you go in there you
might get killed too! You can't do nothing!, It's 'Easily'!, don't go in
there!" "Ms. will you please stay out here and keep everybody away from the
body please?!" Quinn held his mini cannon of a weapon with both hands, aimed
ahead of him, as he had stepped over the threshold. As he had entered the
residence, Quinn said, "Police! Come ocut with your hands up!" There wasn't
any response. The livingroom locked very neat and tidy. The sofa, loveseat
and lay-z-boy were all black leather and they were shaped in an 'L' formation,
and they all were facing in the same direction, towards the entertainment
center, that consisted of a stereo, with a five disk C.D. carcusel, a V.C.R.,
a D.V.D. player and a large screen television. The livingroom, diningroom

and the stairs were all carpeted with a plush, mint green carpet. all of

the livingroom furniture was arranged around a gemuine cak coffee table.



Fasily:

(13.) Robert V. Vaughn Jr.

Quinn also knew that he had to also check out the upstairs also, but he had to
also check oﬁt the ground floor first, and then he still had to check cut

the basement, for someone who might be hiding down there. The livingroom

had appeared to be very nice, and vacant. No trouble here. On to the diningroom,
As Quinn had stepped into the diningroom, he had seen it, another dead body
laying on it's bac:k. Quinn had then approached the corpse that was on the floor
with his weapon still ready for use. He had then said in a loud and authoritative
voice, "This is the police! Come out with your hands above your head, now!" No

.respanse. The house was perfectly guiet. Quinn had then locked down at the

body of the victim, and he had seen that this woman was black. He had then
quessad that. she stood between five feet, two, to maybe five fest four inches
tall, and that she weighed around ninety to maybe ninety five pounds, and that
she had appeared fo be between the ages of thirty five to maybe thirty eight
years old. But Quinn noticed, that when he had looked at her face, that it had
appeared that she might have died of being scared to death gding by the
expression that was on her face. But, he'll soon find out. Quinn gquickly checked
the entire room, which consisted of a redwood dining table, that had eight [
formal looking chairs that surrounded it. The table and all of the chairs

all appeared to be spotless. They were heavily polished, and they all shined
from the sunlight that was coming into the room through the diningroom picture
window, that looked out onto the driveway behind the house. The room also had
an ekpensive looking china cabinet, that anyone could sez was full of expensive
white boﬁe china, crystal champagne glasses and a sterling silver tea server,
that you could see through the front door of the cabinet, because they

were made of glass. Coming around the diningroom table to enter the breakfast
room, Qulnn ohce again said out loud, "This is the police!, come out with your

hands up!, now!" And thats when he heard a voice say, "But there's no-one alse
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here. To whom are you speaking Rosey?" Quinn immediately spun arcund while he put
his back up against the wall, with his weapon at the ready for a possible

hostile confrontation. He then barked with a loud voice, "This is detective
sergeant Quinn of the Philadelphia police department!, come out with your hands
above your head, now!" Silence. Not a peep anywhere. Quinn then said with a loud
voice, "Where are you?!, who just said that?!" Quinn then heard that same voice
again, but this time it's response was, "That was I-who have spoken those words!"
"Quite hiding! Come on ocut with your hands up, now!" "But I am not hiding
Roosevelt, I am right here." "Come on out with your hands-. What did you just
call me?" "I called you Roosevelt! That is your name! Your name is Roosevelt
Malcolm Quinn." Detective Quinn is really starting to lose his cool now, and he's
and he's getting pissed off, of the thought that not only does the perpetraitor
knows who he is, but also that the suspect may have staged this entire situation
just to get revenge on him. As Quinn thought that the person who is responsible
for this entire ordeal might be one of the people who he had sent to prison in
the past. How else could the man behind that voice know so much about him?

Quinn has to stay calm, and keep a clear head. Because if he loses his temper
now, that could cause him to act irrational and that could cause him to lose his
life. So Quinn then said, "Show yourself!, stop hiding! Cqme out with your hands
above your head, now!" "But I am not hiding Rosey, I'm right where I've been

for the past few minutes." "Look!, you are to call me detective, or sergeant
Quinn!" The voice had then said, "Pretty much everyone who knows you calls you
Rosey, Roosevelt.”" "I'm not going to tell ybu anymore!, come out with your

hands up now!" "Well, since you insist on seeing me Roosevelt, turn around."
Quinn then spins arcund, but he still doesn't see anything, and he thinks to
himself, where the hell is that back-up? They certainly are taking their own

sweet time getting to the scene of a homicide. Quinn then says, "I still don't
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see anything! I thought that you were going to show yourself! Where are you?!"
"Here I am Roosevelt, right here." Thats when Quinn seen it. It appeared to be a
_ small puff of smoke or a very small cloud, But it wasn't white, it appeared to

be a shade of dark green. And the size of it, it appeared to be the size of a
soccer ball, just a little smaller than the size of a basketball. And the cloud
was just hovering, sitting in the corner of the room. It wasn't touching the
ceiling or the walls., It was just levitating, sitting in the air, totally
motionless., Detective Quinn raised the barrel of his weapon, and aimed it at the
small puff of smoke, while he started to slowly cross the room, for a closer view.
Quinn couldn't believe what he was seeing with his own eyes. When Quinn was about
ten feet from the corner of the room, he once again heard that same voice és it
said, "Thats close enough Roosevelt! Don't come any closer!, you human!"™ "This
can't be real! There isn't no way that a puff of smoke could just be sitting in
the air like that!" "I am not a puff of smoke. I am me. Just like vou-are you."
As Quinn heard that same voice again, he now believes that it is in fact emmitting
from this small cloud of smoke. Quinn keeps his weapon trained on the small
cloud, as he backs away from it, and puts some space between himself and that
voice. Quinn then asks, "Soc did you kill these two women?" 'Yes-that was I."

"So why did you do it? I'm pretty sure that they couldn't hurt you. So why kili
them?" "You may address your inguiry elsewhere Roosevelt. For you-do not possess
the authority to question I, or my judgement." Quinn is thinking to himself,
'where the hell is that back-up?! They should have been here by now! Quinn then
asks, "So are you a ghost or what?" "I have a lot more power than what you
human's consider to be a ghost Roosevelt!" "Oh I see. Then you're the devil.
Thats it right? Are you the devil?" "No. I am not Say-tahn. For Say-tahn is

the most high! He is our supreme ruler. All, in our dwelling place are just
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servants of Say-tahn. For we are his loyal slaves who rejoice, at the opportunity
to serve him, at any given chance." "O.k., so if your not Satan, then what should
I call you? What is your name?" "You filthy human! I-will never understand whf
you-filthy-humans, with your limited capabilities have fa-vor in the eyes of the
almighty cre-ay-tore, for I will never see what it is about you, that he loves

so much. It must be, that he had taken a small part of himself and mixed it

with the dust that he had used in your creation! It may be that: or it may be
something else. But whatever it is, I will never understand, why.you filchy humans
bring him so much joy at even the sight of you! For that, is beyond my
understanding." "Almighty creator? Are you-are you talking about God?" "You filthy
human! It is you who refers to the almighty cre-ay-tore by that name!" "O.k.,

well back to you. What is your name?, what should I call you?" "A1ll of you filthy
humans with your closed minds and limited thinking! You are incapablelof

correctly promouncing my name! With your limited physical abilities, and your
narrow mindedness! You could never pronounce it correctly. For you-would need

two tongues to properly pronounce my name." "Wait a minute," Said Quinn.

"Two~tongues?" "Yes! for I consider mispronunciation of my name a blatant.act
of disrespect. Which of course, is an offense that is punishable by instant
death." Quinn is now caddicorner from the cloud of smoke that is speaking to
him as he watches it. He then notiées that the cloud is starting to move, so he
backs away from it, while he keeps his weapon trained on it. Quinn can't believe
what he's seeing with his own eyes, but thank God that he's starting to hear
the sirens of the other units that is on their way. He guesses that their about
three blocks away, so they should be here any second. Quinn then says; "Wait a
second, did you say-instant death?" "Yes! And such a penalty would be inflicted
upon you immediately Roosevelt, and I would see your lifeless body standing the
.way you are now. Before your empty shell of a body fell to the floor. And

I-along with every other being in the spiritworld would hear your immortal
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being, the part of you filthy humans that lives forever and ever screaming,
begging for mercy, committing blasphemy after blasphemy, begging for the pain

and your tormentors to stopf A1l of you filthy humans are exactly the same!, but
you hate each other so much, with your stupid prejudices, and that shows just
how narrow minded you truly are!" "Wait a minute!, hold on for a second!"

Quinn can't believe what he's hearing. When you say that I would hear my immortal
being, do you mean my soul?" "I ém speak about that part of you that the

Almighty Cre-ay-tore has instilled into that pile of dust many millennia ago.

The immortal part of you that lives on forever and ever, like every other being
in the spirit world. But you filthy humans have become accustomed to calling

this part of your beings your soul or your spirit. And that alone shows just

how narrow minded you really are. You humans are truly pathetic! You-filthy-human!"
"Well since you say that I wouldn't be able to pronounce your name corretly, and
if I mispronounce it, that you'll strike me down instantly, then what do I

call you?" "You may address me as, 'Easily'!™ "Easily?!" "Yes, Easily. For

I have fa-vor in the eyves of Say-tahn. And he gives a part of his strength and
power unto me. With his authority, to do whatever I please. So therefore,

anything that I decide to do is very easy for me. So you may address me as,

Easily!"
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Chapter

Det. Quinn is now standing near the expensive mahogany diningroom table
that is surrounded by eight exquisite matching chairs. The entire house is
now full of uniformed and plain clothed cops, with two paramedics, who are
looking at the deceased ebony princess. Between all of the police and their
squad cars along the block and the driveway behind the row of homes, it's
‘starting to look as if it's a poiice convention. Police officers are going
from door to door, asking questions of the neighbors, to see if any of them
might have any information that could possibly help them solve this horrific
crime, that has taken place in this peaceful, predominantly blaék, middie
class neighborhood. Inside the house, forensic technicians are in teams,
throughout the residence, dusting for prints, searching for hair samples,
looking for footprint impressions to compare to that of the owners and anyone
else who might have been in the residence lately, for anyone who wasn't
authorized to be here, so that they could be guesticned about what happened.

Standing with Quinn, is It. Gilman. A forty eight year old, five foot nine
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inch tall homicide detective who had twenty seven years on the police force,
and is looking forward to his retirement in another three years. Lt. Gilman
is running his hand through his red hair. Also with Quinn is detective
Sergeant Nathan Carlin. Who is a forty year old, six foot tall, two hundred
and forty eight pound blond, who still believes that the F.B.I. was
responsible for the death of Dr. Martin Luther Ring Jr. And Det. Phyllis
McKee, who is a five foot three in tall, one hundred and thirty pound
brunette, who joined the police force after serving three years in the navy.,
after her brother overdosed on heroin. Lt. Gilman can't believe what Quinn is
telling him about Eésily, go he said, "You've got to be kidding me Quinn. Do
you really expect me to believe that a ghost killed these two women? You've
gone back to drinking haven't you? And you were doing so well on your
sobriety. What made you go back to drinking again?" Snapping his fingers as
he says, "I know what is was. It was that beautiful ex-wife of yours wasn't
it? I will admit, she is gorgeous. So what was it?, you ran into her
somevhere? And seen how beautiful she was. Maybe you two talked for a few
minutes?, and after she left, you got depressed. Been drinking again ever
since, right? What was her name again?, Diamond wasn't it?" Locking at each
other at the same moment, Quinn and Carlin caught the expression of utter
‘surprise on the other ones face. Quihn always knew that his ex-wife looked
nice, and she always had the attention of men everywhere she went, but he
would have never knew that Lt. Gilman was attracted to her also. Quinn then
said, "No sir. Her name is not diamond, it's Crystal. And no again sir, I
haven't ran into her recently, I haven't seen her in months. And once again,
my answer is no. I haven't gone back to drinking, in fact the only thing that
I had to drink today was coffee. And on top of that sir, I didn't say that it

was a ghost, I said that it was a demon. Who claims that he has so much pull
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ﬁith the devil that he can do whatever he wants to. And this demon said, that
human beings couldn't pronounce his name correctly, because we would need two
tongues to do that, so it said that I could address it as 'Easily'.” "Wow!,
that certainly is an original idea sergeant. Where did you come up with that
one? I know, you had a bad nightmare not too long ago. And so, you
incorporated it, or parts of it into this story. Thats it right?" Quinn,
Carlin and McKee all looked at each other when Lt. Gilman was finished
_speaking. Because they all knew, that Lt. Gilman didn't really believe what
he was saying. For he knew, that Quinn was one of the best, if not the best
homicide detectives that he has known in the past twenty years. In fact, Lt.
Gilman was the one vho had convinced the city council to allow Quinn to take
the sergeant's exam when the city had a freeze on promoting city employees
due td financial problems. Lt. Gilman kept speaking to Captain Edwards, the
head of the homicide division, and also to the commissioner, who's pull with
the Mayor's office is unparallel. All of the homicide detectives already knew
just how nervous Lt. Gilman really was, about when the media gets a hold on
this story. When the entire city finds out that a demon was responsible for
the deaths of these two women, either the entire city is going to bhelieve
that this was a ploy to cover up the truth of what had actually happened. Or
they might start thinking that the detectives who work for the homicide
division have all lost their minds. So to have this case solved aé soon as
possible, Lt. Gilman has already decided to have his best detective assigned
to it. and his best detective was Detective Sergeant Roosevelt M. Quinn. The
four homicide detectives were all deep in thought for a few seconds, they
were all trying to come up with an idea that would prevent this situation
from becoming a media nightmare. They have already known from past experience

that the city was going to panic over such a high profile case. One of the
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coroners came over to the four of them and noticed that everyone of them were
deep in thought because not one of them had noticed him when he had
approached them. "Excuse me detectives, which one of you is in charge here?"
*T am. I'm Lieutenant Gilman. And you are?" The four detectives all looked at
the hispanic man who was standing before them, and not one of them had
recognized him. The hispanic man stood between five foot eight and five foot
ten inches tall. He weighed between a hundred and twenty five to a hundred
and thirty pounds. He was wearing a black pair of jeans with a blue Polo pull
over shirt. "Ch excuse my rudeness, I'm Victor Mendez, first assistant to the
philadelphia County Coroner. I just had my license switched to Pennsylvania
from Maryland when I moved here from Baltimore last month. I knew that based
on our occupations, that we were going to meet sooner or later, it was
inevitable." After Gilman had introduced his detectives to the coroners
assistant, Quinn had asked, "Mr. Mendez, what is your opinion on what had
killed these two women? They ﬂad to die of something, they just didn't just
drop dead." "Well sergeant Quinn thats just the thing. From the preliminary,
they both appear to be in perfect health." "But how can they both appear to
be in perfect health when their both dead?!"Asked Quinn. "Well thats just the
thing; Physically they both appear to be in great health." "But their both
dead!" Said McKee. "I know. We won't know what actualiy killed them until
their autopsies. Look, there isn't no wounds on the bodies that I was able to
find, no broken necks, no broken backs, no stab wounds, no gunshots, no
lacerations on theif throats, nothing. I couldn't find a thing that was wrong
with them, besides the fact that their dead. At the moment, their deaths are
mysteries. Thats the best that I can do for now." "So how long do you think
that we're going to have to wait until their autopsies?" Asked Quinn. "I take

it that this is a high profile case?" "Extremely high." Said Gilman. "I would
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say two, three days at the most." "Oh great." Said McKee. "By that time the
media will never give us a moments peace. They'li be following us all around
trying to geﬁ é statement from us." "Yeah," Said Gilman. "But we're all used
to it. So just grin and bear it. It won't last long." "Detectives, I'm going
to need the names of the victims so that T ban tag them." Quinn had then .
reached into his back pocket and produced a small notepad before he had said,
"The black woman's name is Céurtney Scott. She's the owner of the house and
property, and she's thirty seven years old. The other victim is Brooke
Larsen. She's forty three years old, and she was the maid." Writing down the
information that supplied to him from Quinn on his surgical gloved hand, all
of the detectives had noticed that he was left handed. "Got it. Now we know
who's who. Thanks detective." Victor Mendez then turned around and walked
away. Gilman had then asked, "So what else do we have on the owner Ms. Scott
Quinn?" "Actually L.T., it's Mrs. Scott. Who is married to a-" looking at his
notepad, Quinn then said, "Mr. Jerome Scott. Who is the assistant Vice
President of the Agave Telecommunications Company." "The Agave Company?"
Asked Gilman, before he had said, "Where did they get a name like 'Agave'.
anyway?" Quinn had then said, "Well sir, 'Agave' is the name of a desert
plant in Mexico that is used to make Tequila. 2And it's alsc the name of the
town in Mexico where the company was founded. And now, the Agave Company only
makes cellular phones. In other words, it's a mobile phone company." McKee
had then said, "Well, you learn something new everyday." Quinn then said,
"Mr. Scott's office is here in Philly, and it was notified by a

Mrs. Donaldson, they next door neighbor, just before you had arrived. And she
had informed me, that his office here in Philly, has contacted his office in
Seattle, to tell him what had happened. But he's in a meeting right now, so

their going to give him a message to call me back, when the meeting is over."
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"0.K. Quinn it sounds like you have everything under control. So whats your
next move?" Asked Gilman. If he doesn't call me back within the next few
hours, I'm going to call him. And I'm sure that when I do speak with him,
that he'll come back to Philly soconer then he was scheduled to return,"
flipping through his notepad again, "On the twentyfirst. Four days from now."
"This is crazy. Said McKee. I don't believe this. There is a demon on earth,
killing people. This is truly insane." Quinn had then said, "The facts are
the facts. There are two dead women, and one of them was running right
towards me, before she dropped dead on the spot. And neither one of them
doesn’'t has any marks or bruises on them that the coroner was able to find.
And the shouldn't be dead, but they are." Carlin then said, "Nobodies
doubting what your saying Quinn. But you have to agree, that you haven't
never heard anything like this either." "Thats true. In all my years as a cop
‘this is the strangest case that I have ever worked. And this case is mine
Sir?" "Yes it is Quinn, because we know that vou'll be able to handle it. So
what does this 'Easily' character want anyway? Has it made any demands or
anything? And why did it show up now and not next year?, or five years from
now?" "I don't know sir." "Well Quinn I'm pretty sure that you will find
out. Thats why I'm letting you have this case, because I know that you will
be getting to the bottom of this. Your just the man for the job, and I have
all of the confidence in the world in you." "“Thanks Lieutenant." "Not a
problem Quinn. Now where are we on this investigation?" "Before you had
arrived sir, the entire house had been searched. There was no evidence of
forced entry, there's plenty of jewelry in the master bedroom, both of the
victims purses were easily found and they both cohtained cash and credit
cards. And Mrs. Scott's purse, had even contained a man's gold ring, and a

receipt was found with it. It was her husbands and she had just had it
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cleaned and the size adjusted. As far as anyone can tell, nothings missing.
There was even five hundred dollars in cash, in a jar that was on one of the
dressers in the master bedroom, that was marked, 'Emergency Fund'. so this
wasn't a home invasion, or a robbery-homicide." "I never heard about demons
who are in search of money or jewelry anyway Quinn. At least now we know,
~that this Easily character isn't trying to buy anyone's soul." Said McKee
while she started to chuckle. Gilman had then said, "This is serious business
McKee! There are two dead women here, and this is not the time for games!"
"Yes sir, I was just kidding." "Well stop it!" At that moment, a black female
uniformed officer had walked into the diningroom where the detectives

were. The officer was closely followed by a white woman who was maybe five
feet six inches tall, and she also had shoulder length blond hair. "Excuse me
detectives," said the officer. "This is Mrs. Parker, she lives up the street
from here. Mrs. Parker thinks that she might have some useful information
about what had happened here today.” "I don't know how useful it might be,
but it may help you out a little bit with your investigation of what had
happened here today." "Thats alright Mrs. Parker, anything that you might
know, no matter how small it might be, it may still be useful. I'm Lieutenant
Gilman, and this is Detective-Sergeant Quinn, and he's the lead investigator
of this crime scene, and this here is Detective-Sergeant Carlin and Detective
McKee." "It's a pleasure to meet all of you, and you may call me Kathy. What
happened here today is a real tragedy, and I will give my condolences to
their families." "So what do you know?, that could possibly help us out on

this." Asked Carlin. "Well a few days ago, when a few other cleaning people

were at my house, they were talking about a house, that had a demon inside of
it, that refused to leave, until it had enough sculs to persuade the devil to

grant it permission-to something about some portal or passageway, that would
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temporarily be opened somewhere. I didn't really pay any of it any attention,
because I had thought that they were just talking about a movie that they héd
seen recently or perhaps a book or something like that. I had no idea that
what they were talking about was true. So like what I had just séid, I wasn't
really paying what they were saying any attention, until I had seen this
gentleman," Mrs. Parker had pointed at Quinn, "Pull up in front of the house,
while Mrs. Larsen ﬁas running down the walkway screaming, until she had just
fell to the ground." Mrs. Parker's eyes had started to water. "You'll have to
excuse me. I've never seen anybody die before." "Thats guite alright," said
Gilman. "Take all the time you need.” #Here you gd." Said McKee while she was
handing Mrs. Parker a pack of Kleenex tissues. Mrs. Parker had then taken two
tissues from the pack before handing it back to McKee. "Thank you." "Your
welcome.” "So anyway, the cleaning people said that they had brought a video
camera with them to see if they could get the demon on tape, but for some
reason, the camera would never get a picture of the demon." "why is that?"
Asked Quinn. "They were saying that for some unexplained reason, thej just
couldn't get a picture of the demon on tape. But from what I also heard, one
of them had brougﬁt one of those disposable cameras, you know, the cheap ones
that they sell in drug stores?" "Yes we know what your talking about." Said
Carlin. "Well anyway, one of them said that they were able to gét a picture
of it, but the picture was changed somehow." "how was it changed?" Asked
Quinn. "I'm not sure. Like I said before I wasn't really wasn't paying them
any attention. I just heard bits and pieces of it." "0.K., 50 one of these
cleaning people has a picture of Easily, and it's changed somehow. But I've
seen it with my own eyes, and I will never forget the conversation that I've
had with it." "Yes sergeant Quinn I understand that. But don't you see my

point? To actually have a picture of a real live demon, that you could sit
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down and have a conversation with? Just think of all of the things that we
could learn from it. It could tell you the truth of what had actually
happened throughout the holy wars between God and the devil, heaven and hell,
God's angels and Satan's demons, and the true reason of why the demons had
turned against God in the first place. The information that we could learn
from this demon, is astronomical! This is a once in a lifetime

opportunity! Theologians and religious leaders from all arcund the world,
would love the opportunity to have a conversation with an actuazl demon. This
is the awaited proof; that God, Satan, heaven and hell truly does

exist. Millions of people, no forget that, billions of people have lost their
faith in God, with millions of people becoming atheists every year, this is
the proof that they need to re-establish their relationship with God. Just
think of everything that we could learn from this demon! About the true
religion, the true God, and then we'll be ablé to live the way that God has
intended us to live as a species. Do you now see my point, this is
sensaticnal! Don't you see the opportunity that we now have?!" Gilman, Quinn,
Carlin and McKee had all just stood there quiet for a few seconds as that all
had just looked at each other with a look of total disbelief on their faces,
because not one of them could believe what they were hearing. This demon,
this 'Easily' had just killed two women, and Mrs. Parker thinks that they
should interview it for a television talk show. It is now very clear to the
detectives that they should just get all of the information that Mrs. Parker
has about this demon, and the people who had been in contact with it, so that
théy could send Mrs. Parker on her way, from the site of the brutal murder of
Mrs. Scott. So Quinn had said, "Kathy, you did say that your name was Kathy,
correct?" "Yes I did sergeant Quinn." "Wonderful, well Kathy I'm going to

need to speak with your maids who had come in contact with this demon, to see
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if they might have any information that could be useful with this
investigation. When would be a good time for me to stop at your home to speak
with them?" "Sergeant Quinn I would love to help you with your murder
investigation, but I don't have any full time maids, neither did Courtney. We
used the same cleaning service that supplies maids to help around your

home. "And what is the name of this cleaning company that you use?" "It's the
Immaculate Cleaning Service, and their office is on Woodland Ave in Southwest
Philly. Quinn was writing this down in his notepad as Mrs. Parker was
explaining it. "0.K. Kathy, now do you know the cleaner peoples names who
were discussing this demon and what they have seen?" "Not by memory. But
there were tﬁree of them. Whenever the Immaculate Cleaning Service sends out
a cleaning crew to clean your home or office, they élways send you a crew of
three people instead of just one person. Thats their trademark. But you won't
have a certain crew who will be at your home every time, it'll be a different
crew every week. If you have a larger hame, or if you own a business and ask
for two people, then they would send you six people. They always send you
three times the amount of people that you ask for. Thats another one of their
trademarks." "And do they charge you £hree times as much?" Asked McKee. "No
they just charge you the agreed amount on your contract." "So you have to
sign a contract to do business with Immaculate Cleaning Service?" Asked
Carlin. "Yes of course. The contract that I have with Immaculate, says that
my home will be cleaned three times a week. Every Wednesday, Friday and
Sunday. And for their cleaning crew to come out and clean your home three
times a week, they only charge you just a little more then what another
cleaning service would charge you for just one day. And the service is
wonderful. When their people are finished, your home iswlmmaculaté!.Their

service is worth three times the amount they charge you, it really is." Quinn
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then said, "So the owners of this home, the Scotts, they used the same
cleaning service?" "Yes thats right. Courtney is the one who had told me
about Immaculate a few years ago. And I've ever been so thankful to her ever
since. They truly do a marvelous job, they really do." "So this maid, Brooke
Larsen, she worked for the Immaculate Cleaning Service?" Asked McKee. "Yes
she did." Gilman then said, "Now wait a minute. Kathy, didn't you just say a
minute ago that this Immaculate Cleaning Service always sends you three maids
instead of one?" "Yes I did lieutenant, it's their trademark." "But at the
time of death of Mrs. Scott and Ms. Larsen, there wasn't anyone else here."
Said Quinn. "So there was only one maid here and not three, sométhings not
right." McKee responded. "So if this Immaculate Cleaning Service always sends
out three people then where's the other two?" Asked Carlin. "I have no

idea. There should have been three of them here, thats how Immaculate
operates.” Quinn then said, "Well thats a ﬁery useful piece of information,
it'11 help immensely, and Kathy, we truly do appreciate everything that you
have told us."Quinn had then said, "Lieutenant, I'm going to pay immaculate
Cleaning a visit to see why there was only one maid here at the time these
women were Killed. It might be a very interesting response." Gilman had then
said, "This is your investigation Quinn, it's your case. You can handle this
investigation anyway you choose to. And if there's anything that you might
need, or need help with, don't hesitate to ask. We need this case closed as
goon as possible. And hopefully, before the media gets wind of what the
suspect is." "Yes sir." Quinn responded. "A fucking demon," said McKee. "I
don't believe this." At that moment, the homicide detectives, Mrs. Parker and
every other person in the Scott home all heard a womans voice from upstairs
yell for somecne to join her in one of the upstairs bedrooms. While a few of

the officers who were on the first floor started to ascend the stairs,
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another uniformed officer was descending the flight of stairs at top

speed. The uniformed officer who came down the steps was a black male, who
wasn't no oldef than maybe twenty two years old. The young black officer had
then yelled, "It went through the floor! Didn*t any of you see it?! It should
b; down here!" "See what Jefferies? What are you talking about?" Asked
Sergeant Ducket JefferieS Superior officer. "A little talking cloud went
through the floor!"™ "A talking cloud? Oh boy, the heat must be getting to
you. Philly is in the middle of a heatwave." Sergeant Ducket, the forty five
year old veteran cop has eighteen years of experience with the police force.,
and it is said that he doesn't believe anything that anyone says to him,
unless their able of showing him proof of what their saying. "Jefferies what
are you talking about?! Clouds can't talk and they can't go through

floors!" Responded someone in the crowd of uniformed and plain clothed

cops. At that moment, Quinn, Gilman and the rest of the homicide detectives
were followed into the livingroom by Mrs. Parker and the uniformed officer
who had took her to the detectives, while another female officer was rumning
down the steps, as she said, "I seen it too!, and it was talking! A little
red cloud!" As the female officer who had just come down the steps-was
pointing her service weapon at the ceiling, Quinn walked over to her and read
her name tag before he said, "QOfficer Cutler," She had then turned her head
to look at him then he had said, "I'm sefgeant Quinn, and I'm with homicide.”
Cu£1er had then said, "I'm not crazy sarge, I know what I saw, and it called
me by my name!” "I seen it too and it was talking!" Said officer

Jefferies. Out of the crowd of police officers and detectives, someone had
then said, "Drinking buddies!“ A few of the cops had then started to laugh
before Gilman had said, "Will you be quiet?! Your at the scene of a double

homicide!, and this is serious! So pipe down, or all of you can wait
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outside!™ Quinn then said, "Officer Cutler, you can put away your weapon,
there isn't any talking clouds down here." Somecne in the crowd had then
yelled, "And there never will be!" "All right now shut up!” Said Quinn as
laughter started to emerge from the crowd. "Look sarge, how could I have
imagined it if I wasn't the only one to have seen it?" "I never said that you
imagined it, I've seen it too, but when I have seen it, it was green and not
red. Now put your weapon away, you won't be needing it." Officer Cutler
looked at Quinn as if she would have bet her house that he was 1ying to

her. But instead of losing her temper, she had just said, Yes sir." As she
was putting her weapon away. A voice from the crowd had then said, "Give me
some of what they were drinking!“ "Yeah, there must be a bar upstairs!" Quinn
didn't even look around to catch the officers who had just said that, because
he knew that no-one in their right mind would ever believe this story if they
didn't actually see this demon with their own eyes. Quinn had then realized,
that if the media does get anyone who had found out about Easily come and
tells them about it, then Gilman's nightmare would become a reality. Every
television station and newspaper throughout the entire country, will all be
saying that the City of Brotherly Love has a police department, where the
entire homicide division is manned by a bunch of insane lunatics. Quinn now
agrees with Gilman that this case needs to be solved as soon as possible,
with the media finding out as little as possible. Quinn would never lie to
the media,.or anyone else for that matter, but he wouldn't volunteer any
information either. If they didn't ask, then he wouldn't tell them. “Tt must
be the heat." "Yeah, has to be. You better take their weapons sarge before
they hurt somecne!" As more of the officers had then started to laugh, Carlin
had said, "Now loock!, if all of you don't shut the hell up and be guiet, then

you will have to go outside and wait! Do you understand?!" At that moment,
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officer Jefferies had said to the entire crowd, "Look! There it is!" While he
had his left arm extended cut and he was pointing to the far corner of the
room, right where the ceiling and the south and west walls all meet. "What
the hell?!" Said someone in the crowd when they had seen it. It appeared to
be a small puff of smoke that was juét sitting in the corner of the
livingroom. Part of it was in the ceiling and the south and west walls of the
room. Quinn had then seen right along with everyone else, that it was red
this time and not green. "Quinn what were you saying about this thing
earlier?" Asked Gilman. "It said to stay away from it and don't get too
Cclose." "Alright everybody you all heard what Quinn had just said, don't get
too close to this thing!" Immediately after Gilman had addressed the crowd
the thing that appeared to be nothing more than a puff of smoke had started
to move. It went through the connecting wall thats between the livingroom and
the diningroom. While it was levitating through the diningroom, everyone who
was watching it couldn't believe what they were seeing. The officers who were
there were murmuring amongst themselves as a few others were pointing at it
as they stared in awe. Someone in the crowd haé then said, "Thats

impossible! What is that thing?!” "No this can't be real." They had all
followed and watched it as it had went from one room to the next. About one
third had then followed suit to what Cutler had done earlier and grabbed
their weapons and pointed them at the floating entity. Gilman then said, "Now
hold if! What the hell do you think your doing?! Everybody put your weapons
away right now! All of the officers who had taken out their weapons had then
placed them back in their holsters, while they were watching the entity who
had told Quinn to call it 'Easily’ as it floated through the house until it
had reached the same corner of the diningroom that Quinn had seen it hovering

in almost an hour earlier. Quinn had then said to the crowd, "Alright






